
Cultural Council of Palm Beach County 
RFS2019-BSD 
Clarification Response – 11/21/18 
 

1. On page 4, section F2, it states the proposer must have a minimum of five years prior 
experience. Is this experience in branding or something else? 
 
The Council is seeking a consultant with at least five years experience in marketing, which 
should include brand strategy and development experience. 

 
2. Can you clarify the insurance requirements on page 6, section 11? 

 
The consultant, at its sole expense, should agree to maintain insurance coverages and limits as 
reasonably required by the Cultural Council in accordance with its standard practices for the 
term of the contract.  
 
Generally, this would include but is not limited to: 
 • Commercial General Liability not less than $ 1,000,000 per occurrence  
• Business Automobile Liability not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit  
• Worker's Compensation Insurance & Employers Liability 
• Professional Liability not less than $1,000,000 
  
Additionally, waiver of subrogation is required. The consultant may satisfy the minimum limits 
required above for either Commercial General Liability, Business Auto Liability and Employer's 
Liability coverage under Umbrella or Excess Liability. The Cultural Council reserves the right to 
review, modify, reject or accept any required policies of insurance, including limits, coverages, 
or endorsements. 
 

3. On page 11, you outline a page limit of 5 pages for the Branding Expertise, item 1 (not inclusive 
of creative) and 10 pages for item 2. Are you requesting that the overall submission be a total of 
15 pages (not inclusive of creative) plus forms or is this page requirement for this section only?  
 
Please limit the responses to A.1. Introduction and A.2 Approach in the Scope of Work (SOW) to 
15 pages, not including creative examples or case studies. Refer to Section G. for submittal 
documents and requirements. There is no page limit on the full submittal proposal.   
 

4. Is there any requirement as to the format of the proposal (size, margins, font, etc.)?  
 

No requirement to format of submission. 
 

5. What is the primary driver for rebranding the Cultural Council? Why now? 
 

In the summer of 2016, the Cultural Council selected The Wunderlin Company to take the 
organization through a one-year, comprehensive strategic planning process. This consultant was 
selected due to their rigorous process, which focuses on change management. As a result, the 
plan focuses on nine strategic initiatives that require significant change over the coming five 
years, rather than the Council’s operational and tactical work. One of those strategic priorities is 



to strengthen the brand and encourage engagement across constituencies and audiences. 
Review the plan here: https://www.palmbeachculture.com/our-impact/our-mission/  
 
With the addition of a new CEO, David Lawrence (joined in August 2018) and the Cultural 
Council wrapping up its 40th anniversary year in 2018, the staff and board believe the brand 
project is critical as we enter into our next chapter. 

 
6. What are your primary pain points as an organization?  

 
Please see Key Challenges on Page 12 (Exhibit A). While these are focused on brand challenges, 
they also impact the organization. Other challenges are addressed in the strategic plan (see Q5 
above).  

 
7. What is your primary goal for this rebrand (i.e. brand awareness? fundraising to help promote of 

culture and provide grants?)? 
 

The primary goal is to create a strong brand that connects with the Cultural Council’s mission 
and engages audiences. This will be the foundation for awareness-building, membership growth, 
business sector engagement and increased sources of funds.  

 
8. One, three or five years after your rebrand, what would make you celebrate internally so much 

that you’d throw a party for yourselves? 
 

Success looks like an increased awareness level and more community leaders/influencers who 
understand the scope and value of the Cultural Council’s services and the strength of the sector.  

 
9. In addition to our approach to creative/branding, does the RFS require that we include creative 

concepts for launch (i.e. creative mock-ups, thought starters)? 
 
No, the Cultural Council does not expect any spec creative work as part of this RFS. Thought-
starters or general ideas for how to launch the brand should, however, be included to provide a 
framework of the consultant’s approach to this part of the SOW.  

 
10. In addition to our approach to strategy, does the RFS require that we include strategic thought 

starters specific to the Cultural Council’s objectives/challenges?  
 

No, these challenges were meant to provide insight and used to inform how the consultant 
would approach the SOW. 

 
11. Are you currently working with an agency on research, strategy and branding? If so, can you 

disclose who that agency is?  
 

As part of the Cultural Council’s contract with the Tourist Development Council (TDC)/Palm 
Beach County, we manage sub-contracts with an advertising agency and public relations firm to 
work on cultural tourism marketing efforts. The Council also uses consultants to do various 
research projects and surveys throughout the year. While some of these assets may be used by 
the brand consultants to inform the project, the RFS project is completely separate and will go 
through a vetted selection process.   

https://www.palmbeachculture.com/our-impact/our-mission/


 
12. Related to Question 2 in the Approach (Page 11), can you please outline the sub-brands? 

 
For the purpose of the RFS, the sub-brands referred to apply to the Cultural Council’s programs 
and services. For example: Arts in My Backyard (AIMBY), Institute for Cultural Advancement 
(ICA), Cultural Concierge program and the Summer Concert Series. As we go through the brand 
project, a consultant may consider sub-brands for different audiences or lines of service (grants, 
advocacy, artists, etc.). This will be determined once the project is underway.  

 
13. What research, if any, does the Cultural Council already have that is relevant to the current 

assignment? 
 
During the strategic planning process in 2016/2017, interviews were conducted with various 
business and community leaders about their perception of the Cultural Council and the 
organization’s role in the community. There are also member surveys done regularly that could 
provide insights on value and benefits. These transcripts will be made available.  

 
14. Does the Council have a consumer database of people who fit the descriptions of the audiences 

listed in the RFS?  
a. If so, what form of contact information do you have – address, phone, email, etc.? 
b. If so, will the Council share the database with the agency selected for this RFS for the 

purpose of recruiting opinions?  
c. If so, is the database segmented into these categories of consumer (ex. artist vs. 

member vs. donor, etc.)?   
d. Are there any audiences not represented in the Council’s own database?  

 
The Cultural Council has comprehensive databases for all audience types (this includes address, 
email and phone). The brand consultant will have access to this contact information, as 
appropriate. The consultant may want to supplement these audiences with a sampling of the 
general public and/or other constituents they deem important to inform the brand strategy. 
 

15. The RFS states insurance is required, but not the type. Does CCPBC require general liability, 
professional liability, or both?  
 
Please see Q2. 

 
16. How long has CCPBC been considering a re-brand? 

 
Please see Q5. 
 

17. Who will make final decisions on all work completed by the awarded firm? Are there different 
decision-makers for the various stages of the process? 
 
The brand consultant will work directly with the Chief Marketing Officer, supported by the 
Cultural Council’s marketing team. At certain points of the project, the Council’s leadership team 
(CEO, CFO, CGO, Development Director, Board Chair) may also be involved in strategic or 
creative discussions/direction. Ultimately, the CEO will approve the final work product.  
 



18. Please rate the level of board support on a scale of 1 to 10 (low to high) for the scope of work to 
be addressed in the RFS and describe accordingly. 
 
10. The Cultural Council’s board approved this project as part of its strategic plan. 
 

19. Can CCPBC provide access to the current strategic plan? What goals have been met from this 
plan? How do any prior plans fit into the current RFS? 
 
See Q5. Although there have been some efforts made to enhance the organization’s 
institutional marketing through the 40th Anniversary season, the RFS for Brand Development and 
Strategy is the first major step in meeting the “Strengthen Cultural Council Brand” objective.  
 

20. Can CCPBC provide access to past campaigns launched in out-of-state markets? 
 

Campaigns in out-of-state markets directly correlate to our cultural tourism marketing efforts as 
part of our contract with the TDC. These efforts are meant to build awareness for The Palm 
Beaches as a destination for great art and culture. While the Council’s logo appears on these 
ads, the dominant brand is Discover The Palm Beaches (tourism brand).  While the Cultural 
Council is interested in exploring how its brand is relevant to out-of-market audiences (and can 
complement the tourism brand), the primary audiences for this work are within Palm Beach 
County.  

 
21. Please clarify the scope of assistance you would like on the launch plan. 

 
For the purpose of the SOW, the Cultural Council is seeking a consultant who will help plan the 
brand launch. This includes recommending strategies, tactics and creative ideas; a timeline; and 
budget. The execution of launch tactics (collateral, events, activations, PR, media buys, etc.) 
would fall outside the SOW and may be handled by the Cultural Council staff, or under a 
separate agreement with the consultant, as appropriate.  
 

22. In addition to first party research to be conducted under this project, is there any existing 
relevant market research or consumer data available either from the Cultural Council or 
member arts organizations? If so, can you provide details about what is available? 
 
Please see Q13.  
 

23. Please clarify the extent to which you want the consultant to be involved with the launch 
tactics? Just development of the plan and production of all materials? It does not include 
implementation (e.g., media, promotion, PR, event costs), correct? 
 
Please see Q21. 
 

24. Is it expected that launch activities will take place in Boston and New York, in addition to PB 
County? Is there a target date for the launch? 
 
Depending on the answer, what type of measurement (baseline & ongoing) are you seeking if 
the consultant is not implementing the launch plan? 
 



The Cultural Council does not anticipate any launch activities outside of Palm Beach County. The 
target launch date would be October/November 2019 to coincide with the start of the social 
season.  
 
In terms of measurement, the Cultural Council is seeking recommendations from the consultant 
on ways to measure brand awareness – setting a benchmark and providing a strategy for 
ongoing measurement, including frequency and mechanism(s) to capture data.  
 

25. Is examining the mission statement to be included in this project? 
 
The mission statement was created by the Board of Directors. While the intention is that the 
mission statement won’t change, if, during the course of the project, information comes to light 
that might cause the Cultural Council to rethink the mission as part of the new brand, the 
organization could certainly investigate this with the board.   
 

26. Explain the importance and scoring of a SBE. 
 

Please refer to Exhibit B on page 14. During the selection process, consultants will be scored 0, 5 
or 10 points for this category (10% of overall score). If the consultant is a certified SBE in Palm 
Beach County (verified on the county’s website), the submission will receive 10 points. If the 
consultant is not certified, but has an office in Palm Beach County, the submission will receive 5 
points. If the consultant has neither, the submission will receive 0 points.  

 
27. Are you looking for spec work as it relates to launch plan ideas? 

 
Please see Q9. and Q21. 
 

28. How important are sub-brands? 
 
Please see Q12. 
 

29. What is your primary B2B function?  
 

As a Local Arts Agency (LAA), the Cultural Council primarily serves as a B2B agency providing 
support services (grants, professional development, advocacy) to creative professionals and arts 
organizations. Some of the Cultural Council’s programs, including the galleries, family events, 
concert series and others would be considered B2C. 

 
30. Does the website or the development of assets need to be included in the budget? If so, please 

provide a list.  
 

Please refer to Exhibit A.3 (page 13) for the list of Deliverables under the SOW.  
 

31. Is there an ideal timeline or milestone that you would expect the project completed by? 
 

Please see Q24. 
 

 



32. Who do you consider your competitors?  
 

As the only Local Arts Agency in Palm Beach County, there are no other local organizations that 
provide the same services or have the same mission, however through the research done during 
this project, perceived competitors could be identified. 
 

33. Do other arts organizations view your cultural events as competitive with theirs? Do you 
compete with them for funding? 

 
While the Cultural Council makes every effort not to compete with the organizations it serves, it 
does share some funders and donors with other cultural institutions. In addition, the Council’s 
strategic plan will more closely align our work as a service agency and will reduce/eliminate 
programmatic overlaps. The implementation of our strategic plan is ongoing and will coincide 
with the rollout of the new brand. 
 

34. Can you share the five year strategic plan referenced in the RFS? 
 

Please see Q5. 
 

35. Are there specific KPIs you hope to achieve with new brand? 
 

Please see Q7. Any additional KPIs would be set by the Cultural Council and the brand consultant 
during the project. 

 
36. Are all of your audiences weighted equally in terms of reach? 

 
Yes. 

 
37. Are you looking for selected marketing team to implement and staff launch events, or only 

propose concepts?  
 
Please see Q21. 
 

38. (A – Background/About the Council/Priorities:  Are these in order of importance to the 
organization? If not, if you had to choose the number one priority from this list, which would it 
be?  

 
All priorities should be weighted the same, however “offer support services to build capacity for 
cultural organizations and foster growth of the sector” could be considered an overarching 
priority since the others are supporting tactics (marketing, grantmaking, advocacy, etc.). 
 

39. (Exhibit A/Overview/Key Challenges) While there are several audiences presented as being vital, 
if you had to choose one that the brand has the most significant meaning to, which would it be?  
 
Through the research portion of the branding exercise, the consultant has the opportunity to 
advise the Cultural Council on audience segmentation, importance, priority, etc. 
 
 



40. In addition to ongoing DMO research, have there been any brand equity research studies 
completed around the Cultural Council over the last two - three years. 
 
Please see Q13.  
 

41. Can you expand upon what you are looking for in terms of measurement as mentioned in 
Exhibit A, 2? 
 
Please see Q24. 
 

42. Can you provide examples of the sub-brands also mentioned in Exhibit A, 2? 
 

Please see Q12. 


